ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 5, 2003
1: 00 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representati ve Hugh Fate, Co-Chair
Representative Beverly Masek, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Cheryll Heinze
Representative Bob Lynn

Representative Kelly Wl f

Representative David CGuttenberg
Representative Beth Kerttul a

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 6
Uging the United States Congress to pass legislation to open
the coastal plain of the Arctic National WIldlife Refuge,
Al aska, to oil and gas exploration, devel opnent, and producti on.
- MOVED HIR 6 OQUT OF COW TTEE
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Board of Gane

Pet e Bui st - Fairbanks

Sharon MLeod-Everette - Fairbanks
Ronald J. Sonerville - Juneau

Ted H. Spraker - Sol dotna

Cifford P. Judkins - Wasilla

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

M chael Fleagle - McGath

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- February 5, 2003



BILL: HIR 6
SHORT TI TLE: ENDORSI NG ANVR LEASI NG
SPONSOR(S): O L & GAS

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/ 24/ 03 0059 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 24/ 03 0059 (H &G RES

01/ 30/ 03 (H Q&G AT 3:15 PM CAPITOL 124

01/ 30/ 03 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

01/ 31/ 03 0100 (H Q&G RPT 6DP 1DNP

01/ 31/ 03 0100 (H DP: FATE, CRAWORD, CHENAULT

01/ 31/ 03 0100 (H MCGUI RE, ROKEBERG, KOHRI NG

01/ 31/ 03 0100 (H DNP: KERTTULA

01/ 31/ 03 0101 (H FN1: ZERQ( DNR)

01/ 31/ 03 0101 (H FN2: ZERQ( REV)

01/ 31/ 03 0101 (H REFERRED TO RESOURCES

02/ 05/ 03 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE VI C KOHRI NG

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the House Speci al
Commttee on Ol and Gas, the sponsor of HIR 6.

PETE BU ST, Appoi nt ee

to the Board of Gane

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the Board of
Gane; provided background i nformation and answered questi ons.

SHARON McLEOD- EVERETTE, Appoi nt ee

to the Board of Game

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the Board of
Gane; provided background i nformation and answered questi ons.

RONALD J. SOVERVI LLE, Appoi ntee

to the Board of Gane

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the Board of
Gane; provided background information and answered questions.

TED SPRAKER, Appoi nt ee

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- February 5, 2003



to the Board of Gane

Sol dot na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the Board of
Ganme; provided background information and answered questions.

CLI FFORD P. JUDKI NS, Appoi ntee

to the Board of Gane

Wasi |l | a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the Board of
Gane; provided background information and answered questi ons.

ROD ARNO

Wasilla, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of the appointees to the
Board of Gane.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-2, SIDE A
Number 0001

COCHAIR MKE CHENAULT called the House Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:00 p.m Represent ati ves
Chenault, Fate, Wl f, Gatto, Heinze, Lynn, CGuttenberg, and Masek
were present at the call to order. Representative Kerttula
arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HIR 6- ENDORSI NG ANVR LEASI NG

CO CHAI R CHENAULT announced that the first order of business
woul d be HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 6, Urging the United States
Congress to pass legislation to open the coastal plain of the
Arctic National WIldlife Refuge, Alaska, to oil and gas
expl orati on, devel opnment, and producti on.

Number 0140

REPRESENTATI VE VIC KOHRI NG Al aska State Legislature, testified
on behalf of the House Special Committee on Ol and Gas, the
sponsor of HJR 6. He said:

It's ... a resolution from the [House Special
Commttee] on Ol and Gas. We chose to go with that
route as opposed to an individual nenber, because it's
an all-inclusive effort; ... it's a very inportant
pi ece of |egislation. It's a resolution; it wouldn't

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- February 5, 2003



have ... anything to put into effect as far as a | aw,
but it's nmaking a very inportant statenent to the
United States Congress, as well as the President of
the United States, and other inportant officials that

you see |isted on page 2. This is a very famliar
pi ece of legislation that we've had in the past; it's
the sane bill as last year that reiterates our stance

on the issue of whether we should go into ANVR [Arctic
National WIdlife Refuge] and open up the coastal
plains for exploration, and hopefully, eventually,
developnment - if we can find the reserves that we
expect to be there.

If you go through the resolution, you'll see real
inportant points in here. It's a 1.5-mllion-acre
area that constitutes the coastal plain, which is a
very snmall area in all of ANMWR it's just the very
northern tip on one side, so if there 1is any
devel opment in there, it's going to affect a very
m ni mal area. The expected footprint, ... as far as
what would be left behind if we were to develop the
area, would be less than one-half of 1 percent of the
coastal plain itself - only about, we predict, 2,000
to 7,000 acres of land involved. W are hopeful that
we can pass this [out of the House Resources Standing
Commttee] and nove it to the House floor, and this
will be our way of sending a nessage to the United
St at es Congr ess. As a nmenber of the Energy Council,

we are going to advocate strongly for ANAR again
this year; we are going to travel to [Washington] D.C.

for the Energy Council, and this wll be ... our
primary issue in advocating for the opening of the
coastal plain, and hopefully we wll realize sone

maj or devel opnents that can very positively contribute
to our econony, and help |essen dependence on foreign
oil.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG referred to the bill packet and said it
contai ned additional information including the substanti al
nunber of jobs that [opening ANVR] woul d create.

Nunber 0373
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked how anybody who's concerned about the
future of Al aska, econom c devel opnent, and energy independence

for the United States of Anmerica could possibly be opposed to
openi ng ANVR.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- February 5, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG said the question was perplexing to him
too, and he couldn't inagine anybody being opposed to it, but he
did mention there had been concerns from people living in the
region about the <effect on the environment and wldlife
popul ations, minly, the Porcupine caribou herd. He said,
"We're sensitive to the environnent; there's reference to that
in here, that we want to develop the area in a very responsible
way and not ... affect the mgrations or the cal ving grounds ..
of the herd." Another point, he said, would be to |look at [the
results] in Prudhoe Bay: the caribou population is healthier
than it was before the [area] was devel oped. Representati ve
Kohring remarked, "I've seen pictures of caribou rubbing their
backs on the pipeline, and it doesn't seemto affect the calving
either, so, I'm ... hopeful that we're going to see little, if
no, inmpact on the environment there, and the concerns of those
in that area, along those lines, will be mtigated."

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN expressed support for HIR 6.

Number 0493

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK remar ked, "We've seen this before us every
year now, | think this is the ninth time |'ve seen this
resol ution.” She recalled questions from the press about the

effort the [legislature] has put into [funding the | obbying
efforts of] Arctic Power and [towards opening] ANWR, and
remarked, "As history says, you have to take it step by step
and have patience, and | think overall from when we first
started here ... we've nade quite big steps.” She continued, "I
think we're highlighting nore on getting [ANWR] open; | think
this resolution is really inmportant, and it plays a pretty big
role in our state as far as ... how we support ANVR "

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK nmade a reference about President Bush
educating the new nenbers of Congress, and said she thought
[ Al aska] needed to have this type of resolution. She tal ked
about questioning by the public and the nmedia of the efforts of
the [legislature to open ANWR] and brought attention to a
newspaper article about crises occurring around the world. She
said, "In Russia, ... they're one of our biggest ... conpetitors
as far as opening any oil developnent, and | know in Russia
they're ... facing serious trouble as to how ... they export the
oi | because of the lack of a pipeline, and they' re going to have
[to] build new [facilities] to get the oil out."” She spoke
about the Venezuel an governnent's undergoing [l|arge] changes and
remar ked, "They're the next country that we're conpeting wth

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- February 5, 2003



[for] ... oil developnent. So, | think the nore that we can do

today to secure and show the oil conpanies that ... we have a
very good econony here -- and it's very safe; it's not like the
other countries.™ She said deliberations over the resolution

hel p with the process. She expressed her support.
Number 0703

REPRESENTATI VE  GATTO spoke about the Persian @lf war,
particularly, the destruction of Kuwait's oil wells wupon the

retreat of the Iraqgi arny. Referring to Iraq's |eader, he
remarked, "He, ... essentially, took the chance to plunge us
into a nuclear winter; it wouldn't be nuclear, but the idea
being that he took a risk of essentially destroying the whole
: pl anet as we know it. " If a simlar situation were to
occur, he said, all of that oil in the Mddle East that [the

United States] inports so nuch of would becone unavailable for a
very long period of time. Representative Gatto spoke about [the
United States'] need to have access to its own secure [o0il]
supplies, and said due to national security, [the United States]
needed to have a dependable resource wthin the country.
Representative Gatto, referring to Representative Kohring's

aforenentioned trip to Wshington D.C., remarked, "The one
nessage | want to get back to Washington D.C. , is, there are
crazy people in the world, and they do crazy things; ... if they
were to cut off our ... supply, ... we need it, we depend on it,
and we can't get by without it; ... if they take it away from
us, | don't know ... what will happen, but | do know we will be
in severe trouble.” He suggested the oil supply in the Mddle

East could easily be taken away fromthe [United States].

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRING, in response to Representative Gatto,
said he would take that nmessage with him while he travels
t hroughout Washington, D.C., and neets wth vari ous congressnen.
He thanked Representative Masek for her |eadership on this issue
and remarked, "I know you've had this resolution yourself in the
past, and we did pass the sane resolution with the Twenty- Second
Al aska Legislature ...."

Nunmber 0905

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG sai d dialogue from either the courts
or Congress said that Alaska wouldn't get [royalties at the
ratio of] 90:10 [in relation to the federal governnent] out of
ANVWR coastal plain devel opnent, and would go back to 50:50. He
asked Representative Kohring to expand on whether there had been
any nore dialog on the subject.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- February 5, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG replied that he was not aware of any new
dialog, but he would research the issue and present that
information at a subsequent neeting. Noting that the bill did
address that particular issue, he referred to page 3, lines 15-
19, which read:

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Alaska State Legislature
opposes any unilateral reduction in royalty revenue
from exploration and devel opnent of the coastal plain
of the Arctic National WIldlife Refuge, Al aska, and
any attenpt to <coerce the State of Alaska into
accepting less than the 90 percent of the oil, gas
and mneral royalties from the federal land in Al aska
that was prom sed to the state at statehood.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG indicated he might present a resolution
to the House Special Commttee on G| and Gas specifically
addressi ng that issue.

Nunmber 1089

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK noved to report HIJIR 6 out of commttee with
i ndi vidual recommendations and the acconpanying zero fiscal
not es; she asked for unani nous consent.

Number 1104

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG obj ected for the purpose of offering
an anmendnent to HIR 6.

[ Al t hough Co-Chair Chenault called a brief at-ease, a notion was
made i medi ately afterward, and thus the recording continued.]

Nunber 1133

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK wi t hdrew her notion to report HIR 6 out of
comittee.

Nunber 1148

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG referred to page 1, lines 13-15, which
read:

VWHEREAS the "1002 study area" is part of the coastal

plain |located within the North Slope Borough, and
residents of the North Slope Borough, who are

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- February 5, 2003



predom nantly | nupi at Eski no, are supportive of
devel opnment in the "1002 study area"; and

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG t al ked about the Gamch'in [people's]
[ dependence] on the [Porcupine] cari bou herd, and their
opposition to opening ANVR He suggested the Gmch'in people
have a conpletely different position [on ANWRl than the Inupiat
[ people], and said the interest was in not bringing that
conflict into this resolution. Representative Quttenberg
offered an amendnent to strike [lines 13-15]; he said he thought
it would strengthen the [resolution].

Number 1205

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK objected to the amendnent. She told the
commttee that the area being discussed is in the North Slope
Borough (NSB); she said she thought it was inmportant for [lines
13-15] to remain in the resolution because they are in support
of it.

Number 1230

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG, in response to Representati ve
GQuttenberg's suggested anendnent, said it would be helpful to
denonstrate support in the affected regions. Referring to the

GuMch'in [people], he said there are people who have voiced
their opposition to the resolution. He suggested, however, that
the mpjority of residents in the area, nostly I|nupiat [people],
are in support of the |egislation. Representative Kohring
remarked, "I think that would enhance and not detract from the
strength of this resolution.™

Number 1282

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK rem nded the committee that HIR 6 would be
going to Congress and the President. She offered her belief
that it would delineate the process to renove lines 13-15, and
that it was inportant for the language to remain in the
resol ution.

Nunber 1324

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, discussing the inportance of nmaking the
bill accurate, referred to line 14 and suggested [anending] the
sentence to say, "and the Inupiat residents of the North Sl ope
Borough are supportive."” He said the outconme would be an

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- February 5, 2003



accurate statement because it doesn't refer to other residents,
only to the ones who are supportive.

Nunber 1376

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG responding to Representative Gatto, said
[the proposed anendnent] was a reasonable suggestion that he
woul d not object to.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE stated her belief that the |anguage is
fine, clear, and succinct, and said she didn't think it should
be changed.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG referred to the Gach'in people and
said they don't have oil on their land, don't live in the North
Sl ope Borough, and don't have the resources to walk the halls of
Congr ess. He remarked, "But those guys are back there pounding
the halls of Congress on the [devel opnment of ANWR], and ny point
was not to have sonething that they can refute talk about that
their resources are on the land, ... the caribou that are in the
calving grounds or what they harvest." Representati ve
GQuttenberg reiterated his belief that renoval of the section
would be Dbeneficial to deter any future opposition to the
ref erence.

CO CHAI R FATE suggested that at one tinme the GMch'in people had
nounted an exploratory effort to find and devel op hydrocarbons
on their land. He said he was synpathetic to the lifestyle and
wishes of the Gach'in [people], but that there was a |arger
issue at stake, which is the econony and the State of Al aska,
and proceeding wth sonething that the state and the nation
desperately need. Representative Fate concurred wth the
| anguage as it exists in HIR 6.

Nunber 1529

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK pointed out that the GaMch'in [people] had
traveled to Washington, D.C., to lobby on this issue in the
past . She referred to Sara Janmes (ph), who she said was the
forerunner on this issue; had received a lot of press and nedi a
attention; and had nmade a big presence in Washington, D.C.  She
offered her belief that the reason for ANWR not opening was due
to the | obbying of the Gmch'in [people], and remarked, "I think
we all know that they're on the opposite side of this issue.”
Representative Masek said the GMch'in people have a right to
speak out and say what they want, and that they have done so
very eloquently. She commented, "W as a |egislative body

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- February 5, 2003



do have to l|ook at the bigger picture ...." She noted her
desire for the language to remain the sane.

Nunber 1632

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG wi t hdrew hi s anendnent .

Nunber 1644

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK noved to report HIJIR 6 out of commttee with
i ndi vidual recommendations and the acconpanying zero fiscal
notes; she asked for unaninous consent. There being no
objection, HIR 6 was reported from the House Resources Standing

Commi ttee.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS5

Board of Gane

Nunmber 1690

CO- CHAIR CHENAULT announced that the next order of business
woul d be the confirmation hearings on the appointnent of [Pete
Bui st, Sharon MLeod-Everette, Ronald J. Sonerville, Ted H
Spraker, and Cdifford P. Judkins] to the Board of Gane. [ The
confirmati on hearing on the appointnment of M chael Fleagle was
deferred until February 12.]

Nunber 1792

PETE BUI ST, Appointee to the Board of Ganme, testified, noting
that he was presently in Arizona attending a work-related fire
managenent training course. He explained that he is a |icensed
hunter and trapper, and had been so all of his adult life. He
said he respects nonconsunptive uses and users of Alaska's
wildlife. He noted that he had been a nenber of the Al aska
Trappers Association since its inception in 1973, and served
several terns as its president, recently resigning as director
He spoke about serving on the Fairbanks Advisory Conmittee to
the boards of fish and gane for about 17 years, and serving as
co-chair for the coalition for the Al aska Way of Life, which he
said in 1998 directed the defeat of the initiative that would
have banned wol f snaring. M. Buist remarked:

The way | look at it is, wilves are neither bad nor
good, they're just wolves, but they obviously can
negatively i npact ungul ate popul ati ons; C t he

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- February 5, 2003



bal ance of nature that we hear so nuch about is a
series of highs and lows .... I'"'m ready to put the
resource first, listen to the |ocal advi sory
commttees and the biologists, and hopefully nake
deci sions that keep the resource first. Thank you.

Nunber 1901

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE asked M. Buist how he felt about [the
governor's executive order] noving [the D vision of Habitat and
Restoration] permtting from [Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane
(ADF&G) ] to the [Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR)].

MR, BU ST said it was his goal to keep his DNR job and his Board
of Gane appoi ntnent separate, and he would prefer not to address
Representative Hei nze's questi on.

Nunmber 1953

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked M. Bui st how he felt about
subsi st ence.

MR. BU ST, in response, said he thinks subsistence is a very
valid, and probably the nost inportant, use of Alaska's wildlife

resour ces. He said he has sonme problenms wth the way
subsi stence is defined and managed, but he feels that the use of
wildlife for food, in nost cases, trunps wildlife for tourism

reasons, and sone of the nonconsunptive argunents.

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK, referring to M. Buist's resune, said she
t hought he was really qualified, and acknow edged that he had
been in the state for quite a while. She asked him for his
position on the Tier Il permt [hunt supplenents] for nopose and
cari bou; on GW [Gane Managenent Unit] 13 for the Nelchina
[caribou] herd; on GWJ 15 for noose in the Mtanuska Valley
area; and on whether he thought those pernmts needed to be
wor ked on or was satisfied with how [the process] was wor ki ng.

MR BU ST, in response, said in general, as far as Tier |II
permts are concerned, he had sone hesitations about how those
permts are adm nistered. He said the applicant's residence
| ocation is not supposed to be a criterion for state allocation
of resources and yet it still seens to be, and he suggested
there is probably a better way to admnister [Tier Il permts].

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- February 5, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE MASEK, noting that she had provided testinony to
the Board of Gane |ast year, said with the new admnistration
and new board appointees, she felt [Tier Il permtting] was one
of the areas that needed to be focused on. She expressed
appreciation to M. Buist for taking his tinme to serve on the
board, and said with the [population] of the state grow ng, the
needs are going to grow. She remarked, "Wth the inpacted
areas, ... Wth our population with our npose and caribou, |
think we need to address it, and try to fine tune it and fix it
up, so that it would address and neet every ganme nanagenent unit
in the state, so that our Al askan residents can have their nobose
and cari bou."

MR  BUST, in response, said it sounded as if he and
Representati ve Masek were working toward the sane [objective].

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG, noting M. Buist's nention of the
nonconsunptive wuser's being represented, asked M. Buist to
expand on that and to explain how he envisioned it happening on
t he board.

MR. BU ST renmarked, "I don't see why | can't be respectful and
supportive of nonconsunptive users; ... very often neat on the
table trunps peace of mnd for people who don't want anything
dead. "

Nunmber 2196

CO CHAI R FATE thanked M. Buist and others like himfor the tinme
spent in trappers associations and other associ ati ons,
furthering the end of true conservation and the real nmanagenent
of animals in this state. He remarked, "Thank you for literally
sacrificing yourself to our commttee and to the job ahead of
you. "

Number 2271

SHARON M LEOD- EVERETTE, Appointee, Board of Gane, testified.
Noting that she is pretty nmuch a lifelong Al askan, except she
m ssed being born in the state by about 11 nonths. She said she
grew up out on the Genn Hghway at mle 153.5, in a rural area;
her famly hunted and fished to eat; she went through the
G ennal | en school system her nother was her teacher during the
time the state was a territory because there wasn't a school
near her hone; and she continued on to [attend] the University
of Al aska [Fairbanks (UAF)]. She remarked, "I learned to eat

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- February 5, 2003



beef in the commons; it was a unique experience after having
grown up on noose, caribou, grayling, and Copper R ver reds.”
Ms. McLeod-Everette explained that she graduated from coll ege
with a teaching degree in 1971, but she never put it to work;
she went to work at the Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities (DOT&PF); working in the right-of-way, planning, and
research section, where she ran a statew de education and
i nformati on program She said she went back to school at UAF
and earned a professional witing master's degree in 1993;
during that time, she continued hunting and fishing; in the late
1970s she [worked] as a cook in a hunting canp and received an

assistant [hunting] guide's Ilicense sonetine around 1982 or
1983; and she received a big-gane hunting guide's license in
1989.

Nunber 2353

M5. MLEOD-EVERETTE said she had been a nenber of the
International Right of WAy Association (IRM) and had held both
international and local chairmanships; is a lifetinme nenber of
the UAF Alummi Association; and is a nenber of the National
Rifle Association (NRA), the North Anerican Hunting Cub, the
Al aska Qutdoor Council (AOCC), Mdnight Sun Flycasters, and
Nordic Ski C ub [Fairbanks (NSCF)]. She mentioned that she is
involved in the Becom ng an Qutdoors' Wnman (BOW program across
the state, which is nanaged by [ADF&G, and said she is on the
steering conmttee for BOW and is an instructor for various
[activities] including: introduction to big-ganme hunting; field
dressing; backpack chef; introduction to fishing; rafting;, and
noose calling. She talked about helping the Trapper's
Association out wth kids' night activities, and said recently
she had gotten involved on the Fairbanks literacy council
advi sory board. Ms. MLeod-Everette talked about working wth
t he UAF  nmaster pl anning subconmttee for traffic and
circul ation.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG highlighted the BOW program and
t hanked Ms. McLeod-Everette for her involvenent. He remarked,
"I think that's great, and |I've heard great things about it."

M5. MLECD- EVERETTE, in response, told Representative Quttenberg
that the [BOW programi was one of her favorite [activities] and
remarked, "There is nothing |ike seeing the 'aha" when sonebody
who' s not been exposed to sonething in the outdoors gets it."

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF commended Ms. McLeod- Everette on her resune,
and asked her how she felt about the governor's intent to

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- February 5, 2003



streamine the permtting process, and whether she supported "a
new face for [ADF&F, as far as bringing new ideas into the
departnent.” He noted that a conm ssioner for ADF&G had not
been [confirned].

M5. MLEOD- EVERETTE, referring to the permtting process, said
she thought there was always room for streamining and doing
things better, but she didn't know what to think about noving
permtting from ADF&G to DNR, she didn't know enough about the
process to know how dramatically it wuld affect either
departnment. She talked about the governor's intention and
remarked, "I think his heart's in the right place trying to
streamine the permtting process,” but said there were people
nore versed in it than her and that she would wait to see the
[ out cone] .

Number 2530

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked Ms. MLeod-Everette if she thought
"new blood" in the departnent would be beneficial for running
ADF&G.

M5. McLEOD- EVERETTE replied, "Absolutely, | think so.”

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE asked Ms. MLeod-Everette if she would be
open to the [Division of Habitat and Restoration's] being noved
to DNRif it would benefit the permtting [process].

M5. MLEOD- EVERETTE, in response, reiterated that her know edge
about the process and the inpacts were limted, and that she
coul d not speak about it.

REPRESENTATIVE WOLF clarified that his question was about
streamining the permtting process rather than about noving the
[ Di vision of Habitat and Restoration].

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, referring to Ms. MlLeod-Everette's resune,
asked her if she had a Mster of Arts degree in professional
writing.

M5. McLEOD- EVERETTE replied, "Correct."

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO voiced his assunption that M. MLeod-
Everette would probably be a watchdog when regulations were
witten and remarked, "Clarity would be available to all of us,
and there woul d be no m sunder st andi ngs. "

Number 2630

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- February 5, 2003



M5. MLEOD- EVERETTE, in response, said clarity is a very Kkey
issue and usually she is a particularly picky person about it;
however, she pointed out that there are people who may be above
her in the process that have nore say about the |egal [aspects]
of witing [regulations]. She renarked, "But you are absolutely
correct, | believe in clarity."

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, referring to her resune, talked about her
i nvol venent in snowshoei ng, snow machi ni ng, cross-country
skiing, and hiking, and suggested that many of the activities
Ms. McLeod- Everette is involved in are "opposed" to each other
He remarked, "W know the wars that go on between cross-country
skiers and snowmachiners ...," and asked her how she would
resol ve the issue of opposing uses.

MS. McLEOD- EVERETTE r enar ked:

| think what you look at is the balance ... of the
activities, and you look at the primry use. For
exanple, vyou're talking about closing sone waters,
perhaps, to notorized uses, in deference to strictly
fly-fishing. | think you have to analyze the entire
situation, |look at what the full uses of the area are;
there may be other uses that take precedence over the
singular wuse of strictly fly-fishing. | love fly-
fishing; ... there are lots of places you can do it
where there is notorized access and it’s not a
pr obl em A lot of ny activities are done in concert
with one another, so, ... | see balance in a lot of
this.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out that M. MLeod-Everette was a
publ i shed author and asked her if she has witten books that
deal with outdoor activities.

M5. M LEOD- EVERETTE said yes, the book she published tal ks about
growing up on the denn H ghway and about doing sone guiding.
She nentioned that she had witten for work related newsletters
and technical journals while working at DOT&PF; she had to
translate highly technical research reports into sonething that
a sixth or eighth grade student woul d under st and.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO remarked, "Perhaps you should have been a
school teacher."”

M5. MLEOD- EVERETTE, highlighting the fact that she had grown up
W thout electricity or running water, explained that the reason

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -15- February 5, 2003



she didn't becone a teacher was because when she [graduated]
from college, the only teaching jobs available were in areas
with no electricity or running water, and she had discovered
that she |iked showers.

Nunber 2816

RONALD J. SOVERVI LLE, Appointee to the Board of Gane, testified,
noting that he has been a resident of Al aska for over 60 years,
and his parents had noved to Craig when he was a year old. He
tal ked about receiving a bachelor's degree at Hunboldt State
University and his nmaster's degree at the University of Montana.
M. Sonerville said he had an opportunity to work in WAshi ngton

D.C., for a year and a half, which he said, "Was really [an]

education in itself." He explained that he didn't |Iike
commuting in Washington, D.C., and wanted to cone back to
Al aska, so he did. M. Somerville remarked, "My dad was a

commercial fisherman, and thus | becane a commercial fisherman,;
nost of ny famly, both sides, ny nom and dad, were fairly
| arge, so we had lots of relatives in the area; we were active
subsi stence users." He talked about his stepfather's being a
| ogger for a nunber of years, and said he also had partici pated
in that activity. He remarked:

As you mght expect, that obviously overlapped a
period precluding statehood, and ny dad was an active
participant in the process of fighting for statehood;
he was a good friend of both [E L.] Bartlett and
[Ernest] Guening, who used to cone to Craig [and]
stay at our place, so when | grew up | becane a strong
"state's righter," needless to say. When | graduated
from college, I went to work for the [Al aska]
Department of Fish and Ganme - didn't really want to
wor k anywhere el se.

Luckily, I chose wldlife mnagenent rather than
fisheries; | decided I didn't want to step back into
t hat arena. | must sonewhat blanme Carl Rosier for
that; ... he was the biologist in Ketchikan at the
time I was fishing, and | decided that there wasn't
much challenge to his job, because we wanted to fish
and he just kept saying no. Back in those days ... we
went from[a] 33 mllion ... [catch] in Al aska at the
begi nning of statehood to well over 175 mllion;

[it turns out] Carl was right.

Number 2921

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- February 5, 2003



MR, SOMERVI LLE CONTI NUED:

| didn't see much future in fisheries back in those

days. | started as a tenporary seasonal [enployee] in
the [Al aska] Departnent of Fish and Gane - worked in
research managenent. | eventually had the opportunity

to step to [a] regional supervisor position in
Anchorage - Anchorage running from the Canadi an border
all the way out to the end of the Aleutians; it's a

fairly large area, and | enjoyed that job very much
because | got to see a good part of the state. I
eventually nade a big error in nmy life: | volunteered

for [former Governor] Jay Hanmmond's (d) (2) task force
in 1974, and spent the next four years faring between
Anchorage and Washi ngton, D.C.,

Later, [I] becane director of - it was in the gane
division - called wldlife conservation, and |
remained in that position until | retired. I then

cane back at the request of Governor Hi ckel and went
back to work for fish and gane in 1991, and worked for

four years; | occupied a deputy comm ssioner position
for part of that time. | have worked for the Wldlife
Legislative Fund when | was back in Washington [D.C. ]
for a year and a half. | enjoyed it very nuch; the
opportunity to work on ... international issues in
wildlife was new to ne and | enjoyed that, but |
didn't enjoy Wshington, D.C, [ Tape changed sides

m d- sent ence. ]

TAPE 03-2, SIDE B
Nunmber 2985

MR SOVERVI LLE conti nued:

' ve al so vol unt eer ed for activities with t he

departnment, things Ilike the wunit for brown bear
managenent plan; king salnon nanagenent plan, and
things like that representing what | considered the

users of the state, and |I've enjoyed that activity.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked, "How do you feel about new blood in
the departnent or bringing individuals up through the departnent
to be the new conm ssioner or selecting one of those individuals
as conm ssi oner ?"

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- February 5, 2003



MR SOVERVI LLE renar ked:

Especially wth the phenonenal change between the
previous admnistration and this admnistration,

you've got to make major changes, because ... in order
to get what you want from this departnent, which |
think is to reinstate it as one of the classic, top

scientifically wel | -credited, wel | -respect ed
organi zati ons throughout the world and the United
States ,... you've got to change things, and you' ve

got to have leadership that falls in step with what
the governor wants to do, and there's got to be sone

new blood. | agree with that; ... it doesn't nean you
go down and you get rid of all your appointed
positions, but you assess them selectively and

make the appropriate appointnents. | believe you

al ways hire sonebody smarter than you ....

Nunber 2893

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK remarked, "I am glad that your name is on
this board; | really appreciate your wllingness ... to get
involved with it. I know this board is a pretty crucial one to

the nmakeup of our fish and gane here in the state.”
Representative Masek suggested that subsistence would be
addressed during the session, and asked M. Sonerville what he
t hought about iit, and how he felt about anending [Al aska
Nat i onal Interest Lands Conservation Act] (AN LCA). She
mentioned sacrificing Alaska's constitution and the rights for
the resources for all Al askans. She asked M. Somerville if he
t hought changes [to ANILCA] should al so be nmade in Congress.

MR, SOVERVI LLE, noting that he had worked for eight years as a
resource consultant to both the House and Senate mmjorities,
said he did not ask for this job. He was on the transition team
and nade recomendations of a variety of people for the Board of

Fi sheries and Board of Gane appointnents. H s nane was not on
that list, but the governor personally asked him to submt his
nane. M. Sonmerville remarked, "I amin front of you because |
made that commtnent,” and said he is also commtted to doing

everything possible to neet the needs of Al askans - consunptive
and nonconsunptive users. He renarked:

| really respect the advisory conmittee system |'m
really ... respect f ul of the people out there
(indisc.) working everywhere in the state, all the way
up to Point Hope; | spent a winter out there, and I am

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- February 5, 2003



appreciative of cultures, subsistence uses, [and] our
resour ces. I"'m respectful of all a variety of,
particularly, the Native people. | was raised by the

Tlingits, virtually, in Craig.
Nunber 2778

MR. SOVERVI LLE conti nued:

| volunteered for [former Governor] Jay Hamond's task

force on (d) (2) [lands under ANCSA], Harris (ph)

and

| went out to the villages to get sone views fromthe
villagers and what they'd like to see. Jay Hamond

gave ne one mssion when | went back to Washington
[D.C.] as a representative of ... [ADF&J; he says
when we leave, | want to nake sure that we have done

nothing to dimnish the state's authority to nanage

its fish and wildlife, and that's where | got

into

troubl e, because | did not agree with what the federal

government was doing in AN LCA.

| brought that to the attention of the governor, a
vari ety of processes, which, |I'm sure, nost of you are

aware of, and |I don't think we're going to neet
subsi stence needs of Al askans. W're going

t he
to

discrimnate against 40 to 45 percent of the people |
respect, the Native people who live in the urban
ar eas. W are pitting Al askans against each other,

and it's just a terrible, terrible situation.

I'm

going to try again to see if there isn't sone way we
can help solve those problens; obviously, a board

menber by hinself is not going to do that.

MR SOMERVI LLE remarked, "lI've got sonething wth

illustrate ny commtnent to that, ny pledge to
Hanmond. " He read a letter dated April 18, 1978,
Departnent of Law to the conm ssioners of DNR and ADF&G

me to
Gover nor
from the

There is no qualification that the program required by
the Secretary to be constitutional under state |aw as
interpreted by final rulings of Alaska Suprene Court.
It is not difficult to envision the situation with the

Secretary under Title VII, Title VIII,

or

(indisc.) mght require the state to adopt or change
sone of the state's subsistence nanagenent program
whi ch woul d be unconstitutional and thus inpossible to

i npl enent and enforce under state |aw.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- February 5, 2003



MR. SOMERVILLE said prior to ANLCA's passage in 1980, the

Departnment of Law "was telling us what was in Title VIII was
probably, nore than |ikely, unconstitutional, that we were going
to get into exactly the situation we're in right now" He said,
in light of that, he did not support the federal |law and that's
what's got him "crosswised" wth the Native comunity. He
remarked, "A lot of them believe it or not, are still friends
of mne, and ... it's got nme into trouble through the years in
di scussing subsistence; ... honestly, | believe in subsistence,
true subsistence, as much as anybody sitting here or I|istening
Nunber 2664

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK, referring to Tier Il permts, asked M.
Sonerville if the issue could be addressed in the next two
years. She said the noose and caribou population in the

Interior is growng and she has had nunerous conplaints from
constituents in the [WIllow] area about the permtting process.
She suggested the conplaints would increase over tine and
indicated she is interested in resolving the issue to make it a
fair and equitable process. Representati ve Masek, referring to
constituents' concerns, said the [permitting process] was based
on zip codes and the [applicant's place of residency]. She
expl ai ned that many people have lived in the Interior for many
years and "they' ve established that usage, and all of a sudden
they were disqualified for it." She reiterated that the process
needs to be reviewed and asked M. Sonerville if he thought a
review coul d be acconplished during this session.

MR. SOMERVI LLE, in response, said he hadn't seen all of the
details, but he thought there are "some things that are broken
there." He remarked:

|"ve always said, in terns of Fairbanks, Anchorage,
and the Nelchina Basin, which | am really famliar
with, we have a terrible situation on npose and
caribou there, particularly noose - the population's

extremely | ow. Hunting just isn't like it was in the
early 1970s or late 1960s, and thus this is the result
of these populations declining, and it increased nore
of a conflict, which has resulted in exactly what
you're saying, is that there's less permts available

at [the] Tier 11 | evel . But it also is an
illustration: ... if you look at the people who are
getting Tier Il permts, it appears to be, in a

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- February 5, 2003



general sense, the people who can stretch the truth
farthest get the permts, and the people who have
relied on them sonehow, are being shuffled out;
that's just a general observation.

Nunmber 2553

MR. SOVERVI LLE tal ked about the press's view that he is against
subsi stence. He said:

| want to nmke it clear that you people are the
policymakers of the state; the Board of Gane, the
Board of Fisheries inplenent those [and] they have to

have sonme discretion how they do that .... You' ve
established a subsistence priority, which [includes]
the Tier Il process, which the boards are obligated to
i npl enent . | can't blame the boards, but | do think

t hey have sone discretion on going back to try to fix
sone of those things. Some of the problens there are
not going to go away until the laws change, if that's
what you want.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE, referring to M. Sonerville's resune,
asked him why he changed positions from deputy comm ssioner to
speci al assistant in 1993.

MR. SOMERVI LLE replied:

At the time, MKie Canpbell was working on a specia
assignment with the governor's office on subsistence
and other things, but that was when it was made, and
that they essentially cane to an end, and they wanted
to nove him sonepl ace. | volunteered to vacate ny
deputy comm ssioner's spot so that he could occupy
that position, but they kept nme on as special
assistant, and | kind of did what | was doi ng anyway.

REPRESENTATI VE HEINZE asked M. Sonerville if he supported
noving the [Division of Habitat and Restoration ] to DNR, and
also if he would protect the albino [bear] in Juneau.

Number 2456
MR. SOVERVI LLE recalled a conversation with Jim Cark in which
M. Cdark told him the worst thing he ever did was let [M.

Somerville] talk the governor into not noving the Habitat [and
Restoration Division]. He explained:

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- February 5, 2003



| canme at the request of [former Governor] Hi ckel

they appointed Carl Rosier as conmmissioner; ... Wwe
were under a lot of pressure to nove habitat .... |I'm
of a philosophy that anything in government will work
if you want to, people really have commtted to doing
that .... W talked to the governor and said let us
do an internal review and find out iif ... the
accusations are accurate and what can be done to fix
it. So, | wote; ... Frank Rue helped - he was the
director of habitat. W interviewed industry people

across the state. W did ... a fairly exhaustive
personal interview, it wasn't a public-hearing-type

pr obl em but we  went to people we had any
communi cations wth about habitat, and we found that
[in] ... sonme places in the state it was working very
well, and Al Ot (ph) in Fairbanks, well respected by
the mning and the oil and gas industry, does he agree
with themall the tine? No, but are they able to work
with hin? Absolutely, he's very positive.

MR, SOVERVI LLE said in 1992 he issued a report for the [Division
of Habitat and Restoration] recomending major changes, which

were inpl enented. He explained that people he knew in the
i ndustry had said [the changes] worked very well. He remarked,
"The problem has been, ... had habitat stuck ... to what we

concocted back in 1992, we wouldn't be having this discussion,
but apparently they didn't. Apparently, a lot of things went on
[that the] division ... had no business getting into. " He said
he had always been critical about the fact that when other
departnents do not do their job, the pressure cones back on the
permtting biologists in ADF&G to pick up the slack. He
remar ked, "1t cane all the time when | was deputy
[comm ssioner], that DEC doesn't enforce their water quality
standards, they run to [ADF&S wunder Title 16 or the [Al aska
Forest Resources and Practices Act] to do DEC s job, and we kept
telling [then] that's not your statutory responsibility; you
can't do that."

Nunber 2348

MR. SOVERVI LLE tal ked about the appeals process and renarked, "I
think we stuck to that, and |I think had they done that, it m ght

have worked." Referring to [the proposed nove of the Division
of Habitat and Restoration], he said, if there's a major problem
and the governor's convinced it will not be fixed, then "we've
got to give it atry." M. Sonerville explained that he tal ked

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- February 5, 2003



with the [governor] about |eaving some of the functions of the
[Division of Habitat and Restoration] in ADF& and said he
t hought [those functions] operate very well there. He expl ained
that he helped create the [Division of Habitat and Restoration];
back when he worked for the division of gane, there had been
several simlar [permtting] positions in other divisions, and
the process was a nmess until soneone suggested conbining [the
various permtting positions into one division]. He said it
made sense, it was done, and it had cone a long way since its
creation.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE reiterated her question about the albino
bear.

MR. SOVERVI LLE remarked, "My general tendency is, you can't have
closed areas around a |lot of areas wthout creating problens;

I"m synpathetic for a variety of reasons - the protection of
sonme uni que resources that there's no other way out." He said
he woul d have to | ook at the details.

Nunber 2258

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN expressed appreciation for M. Sonerville's
position on subsistence, and suggested that if a person never
takes a strong position on a controversial issue, then that
person is not doing his or her job. He inquired about M.
Sonerville's short tinme in the Air Force.

MR. SOMERVI LLE, in response, said he had received an honorary
di schar ge. He spoke about his initial experience and said, "At
that tinme, the Air Force had too many pilots and they offered us
two-year discharges for a variety of famly reasons, which ny
dad was an alcoholic; | decided to |eave the Air Force and cane
back to Alaska and ... went back to school, and it worked out
okay for ne." He said he would have liked to have stayed in
[the Air Force], and had he been sent to Bainbridge, Florida, he
woul d probably still be in the Ar Force.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN thanked M. Sonerville for [his service in
the Air Force].

MR. SOVERVI LLE added that every sumrer he received a request
fromthe Air Force asking himif he wanted to go to Anchorage
for training, but he always reluctantly declined.

Nunber 2148

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -23- February 5, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO  expressed concerns about resource
managenent and said it was "one of the difficulties we're having

now. " He suggested the resource depends a lot nore on the
habitat for its own survival, and that the habitat seens to be
avai |l abl e. Representative Gatto expressed concerns about the

noose population and difficulties in breeding, attributed to a
| ow noose popul ation and the [animals'] being separated by great
di stance. He renmarked, "Not only do they suffer from predation,
but, consequently, an inability to breed." Representative Gtto
referred to the passenger pigeon and suggested [it becane
extinct] because the nunbers were so thin that they were unable
to follow their natural instincts to find each other and nate.
He expressed simlar concerns about the npose and caribou
popul ations and asked whether such a scenario was ever
consi der ed.

MR. SOVERVI LLE, in response, said years of bull [npose] hunting
in the Matanuska Valley drove the population down to four bulls
per 100 cows. He said he and a commttee nenber's father had
fought over cow npbose seasons for years because there were a | ot
of cows but not enough bulls. M. Sonerville said the focus was
getting people to divert their attention by taking a few cows
and keeping within carrying capacity to raise the bull:cow
ratio, [as a result] productivity went back up again. He said
there's a variety of places in the state where that simlar
situation starts to occur. He offered the Nelchina Basin as a
good exanple of driving the bull:cow ratio down and having them
di sperse over large areas during the breeding season. M.
Sonmerville explained that [the reason for the |ow population] is
not because the cows don't breed; they go into second estrus and
breed the second tinme, and the calves go into the winter in very
poor condition, are very small, and usually perish. He said it
is a legitimate concern and depends on the size of the area they
occupy and the species involved. For instance, caribou wll
still participate in their novenents regardl ess of the size of
the caribou herd and they can generally find each other during
the season. He said the second estrus becones a major problem

Number 1957

TED SPRAKER, Appointee to the Board of Ganme, testified, noting
that he could not be in Juneau in person because he was in Aniak
attending the central Kuskokwi m npose managenent pl anni ng
effort. He nmentioned that the effort had been insightful for
him and noted that many key issues had been discussed. M.
Spraker said he was raised in Womng and had conpleted his
schooling at the University of Woni ng, earning an undergraduate

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- February 5, 2003



degree in wldlife mnagenent and a nmaster's degree in range
managenent . He noted that he has lived in Al aska since shortly
after conpleting graduate school in My 1973. M. Spraker said
he is 54 years old, is married to Elaina Spraker, and has three

children; his 23-year-old son works for Intel in Phoenix,
Arizona, and his two stepchildren, Kyle and Ashley, are ages 12
and 14. He said his famly is very outdoors-oriented; all of
the nmenbers of his famly hunt and fish, are very active in
hunting, and do quite a bit of fishing during the sumrer. M.
Spraker nentioned that he does quite a bit of trapping with Kyle
as his trapping partner. He said he recently retired after

working for 28 years as a wildlife biologist at ADF&G and noted
that M. Sonmerville was instrumental in hiring himin 1974 when
he first started with the state.

Nunmber 1808

MR. SPRAKER said he felt he had acconplished a I ot of things for
the betterment of wldlife managenent and the different users
and had been involved with a variety of projects over his career
W th ADF&G that had really made a difference. He talked about a
project in which 80 caribou were noved to the Kenai Peninsula
and said a couple of years ago that herd nunbered 800. M.
Spraker said he thought that was a real change, sonething
positive that he was glad to be a part of. He suggested that he
was instrunental, back in the early 1980s, in recognizing that
sonmething had to be done on the Kenai Peninsula about the npose
hunti ng. He nentioned that bull:cow ratios get very |low, that
cows have to nmove to find bulls, and second-estrus breeding.
M. Spraker said [ADF&G worked with the advisory conmttee and
menbers of the public to put together the Selective Harvest
Program on the Kenai Peninsula. Although various aspects of the
program were used in other parts of the state, the Kenai
Peninsula was the first place that put the whole program
together as far as harvesting sone of the small and |arger
bulls. He said that program has restored the bull:cow ratio and
the health of the npose popul ation; because of the success, it
has been used in other parts of the state.

Nunmber 1699

MR. SPRAKER said he has been a lifetine nmenber of NRA for about
25 years and has been an official neasurer for the Boone and
Crockett Club for about 15 years, which he said amounts to only
6-10 ani mal s neasured per year. He talked about being a hunter-
education instructor for about 15 vyears, working wth the
departnment and since retirenent; he said it is one of the things

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -25- February 5, 2003



that he has been very interested in. He said youth hunts are
extrenely inportant to him He and his daughter participated in
a youth hunt last fall and she got a npose; it was an extrenely
exciting time for both of them He tal ked about achieving
vari ous awards throughout the years and said the nobst inportant
award that has neant a great deal to him is the lifetine
conservation achi evenent awar d from the Saf ari C ub
I nt ernational . He noted that he was also a nenber, and
remar ked, "That neant a lot to nme because you | ook back on what
you' ve done for the last alnbst 30 years, and it's nice to see
that you' ve acconplished things that hel ped the resource, hel ped
the wusers, and people appreciated it, and that was very
inportant to nme."

MR. SPRAKER tal ked about his hobbies - hunting, fishing, and
trapping - and said he considers viewing to be sonething very
inportant to the state. He said he is a viewer for 11.5 nonths
of the year and a pretty avid hunter for the other few weeks.
He said he had watched the Board of Ganme process during his
entire career with ADF&G and is really anxious to see sone
t hi ngs done under the new admnistration. M. Spraker suggested
there is a strong commtnent to doing good things for the
resource and the users. He said he is getting a firsthand view
of that by being in Aniak and talking with the |ocal people,
understanding their needs, and seeing what needs to be done to
hel p the users and the resource.

Number 1549
REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked M. Spraker, "How do you feel about

new bl ood in the departnent [for the] comm ssioner and/or do you
support bringi ng soneone up fromw thin the departnent.”

Number 1515

MR. SPRAKER replied, "Wth this admnistration, ... | think we
need sonme new blood, | think we need some new thinking; ... we
certainly need people that are willing to |look at new ideas and

bring sonme new thoughts to the table ...."

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK told M. Spraker she was glad to see that
he had accepted his appointment to the Board of Ganme and
commended him for his involvenent in changing the bag limt for
noose from an "any bull" program to a Sel ective Harvest System
Representative Masek referred to the |last paragraph of M.
Spraker's resunme, which read in part J[original punctuation
provi ded] :

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 26- February 5, 2003



| also believe that under this new adm nistration the
Board will be allowed to make needed changes to
benefit wildlife populations and their habitats, and a
vari ety of users across the state.

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK said she thought his coments were really
inmportant and noted the inportance of ensuring that the board
continues to strive, adopt, and nake needed changes.

Number 1395

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked M. Spraker for sone exanples of
t hi ngs he t hought shoul d be happeni ng.

MR. SPRAKER r enar ked:

One of the things that's close at hand ... is the
neeting that 1'm involved in now, ... 1've been
listening to the local concerns; ... | know we've
tal ked several tinmes and you' ve asked other people
about Tier Il and subsistence and so forth. One of
the ways | think Tier 1l needs to be addressed,
instead of continually restricting people: i ke
ot hers have said, whoever's the nobst creative in the
witing usually gets the Tier Il permts, and maybe
people that are nmuch nore deserving don't get the
permt because they're not wlling to stretch the
truth on their need of the resource or direct
dependence and so forth on the resource. One of the
things that I would really like to see is, 1'd like to
see the state take a very strong and aggressive stand
as far as predator nanagenent, and that's the clear
pi cture out here.

MR. SPRAKER conti nued:

There's clear evidence that the npose popul ation has
declined rapidly. It was pretty much triggered

followng 1996, when | and- and- shoot [ hunting of
predators] was halted across Alaska, and talking to
the | ocal people here, in the next four or five years,
the noose popul ation declined rapidly. | asked the
guestion about weather, because weather ... can Kkill
nore noose, just wusing noose as [an] exanple, but
weather can be really detrinental on a noose
popul ation, and there was sone discussion of one bad

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -27- February 5, 2003



W nt er

in the wearly 1990s, ... along the |[|ower

Kuskokwi m or central Kuskokwi m area, but everyone said
we need soneone to step up and do sonething as far
as managi ng predators, and |I'm not just talking about

wol ves;

bear s,

I'"'m tal king about the high nunber of black
a fairly dense brown bear popul ation, and, of

course, wolves as well.

You can't just nmanage predators. You have to have
adequat e habitat. That's sonething else I'd like to
| ook into, and, of course, fish and gane has done

a good

job of, probably, putting that information

together; ... | haven't had a chance to really | ook at

it yet,

but we also need to |look at the nunber of

hunters here, because hunters nake an inpact. One of
the things that | am really concerned with, and this
kind of bears sone interest in the subsistence arena,

IS the proliferation of guides in Unit 19; it's
one of the coments I'm ... hearing at all the
neetings here, is that even if we did a lot to

i ncrease the nunbers of noose, the guides would build
up, and basically, continually take nore npose,
because nore guides would build up in this area.

Nunmber 1185

MR. SPRAKER conti nued:

| think they've gone from sonmewhere around 40 guides
to 80 or 90 guides right now in Unit 19, and [the]

sane thing with transporters. So, those are sone of
the issues that I would really like to look at ... if
| was a nmenber of the Board of Gane; 1'd like to | ook
at managenent of predators; 1'd like to |look at which
users are getting these noose; | am very interested

[in] local people having not a clear priority, but,
certainly, benefits and |ocal benefits and so forth,
so they basically have a little better chance of
getting a noose, especially out here in some of these
vill ages where there's sonme real, true subsistence.

Number 1084

CLI FFORD P.
noting that

JUDKI NS, Appointee to the Board of Gane, testified,
he had noved to Alaska nore than 40 years ago and

had previously served in the [Air Force] with M. Sonerville.
He said he had a bachelor's degree in wldlife managenent and

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 28- February 5, 2003



had worked in Anchorage wth the greater Anchorage health
district before the borough was forned; after the borough was
formed he becane director of the Geater Anchorage Area Borough
Depart nent of Envi r onnment al Quality. He said he left
[ Anchorage] after 10 years, went down to Mdose Pass, and built
Crown Point Lodge, which he operated for about 16 years. \V/ g
Judkins tal ked about serving on the Seward advisory commttee,
and said he was also the chairman a few tines. He said he |eft
[ Mbose Pass], noved to Wasilla, and was the owner and operator
of Wasilla Mni-Storage until he sold it and retired in 1998.

MR JUDKINS said he had been on the fish and gane advisory
commttee in [Wasilla] for about six years and had served as the
chairman for the past year; he just stepped down as chairman
when he was appointed to the Board of Gane. He said he was
excited about being on the board and that he had gone to board
of fish and game neetings for about 30 years and had testified
nore tinmes than he could recall. He remarked, "[I] was al ways
frustrated that you can get up there and testify and they'd go
on with their business and wouldn't listen to what you said, it
seened |ike." He said it would be interesting to be on the
"other side of the shoe, so to speak.” M. Judkins, referring
to his wife, said she had lived in the state nost of her life,
and was raised in Fairbanks and Kodi ak; her father was chief of
police in Kodiak in the 1950s and 1960s. He said his wfe
currently lives in Wasilla with him and their daughter lives in
Nort h Pol e.

Nunber 0920

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked, "How do you feel about new blood in
the departnent as a comm ssioner or bringing someone fromwthin
t he depart nent ?"

Nunmber 0903

MR. JUDKINS said he thought the departnment needed new bl ood. He
tal ked about attending board neetings for the |ast eight years

and his disappointnent with the perfornmance. He remarked,
"While the guys are doing their job under the admnistration
they're in, | think we've got new ideas and need new people
there.” He said the departnent needed to get wldlife

managenent credentials and get it reestablished as the top notch
departnment in the nation.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked M. Judkins what types of things
he woul d be chanpi oning as a board nenber.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -29- February 5, 2003



MR. JUDKINS, referring to Tier Il, said a lot of people in the
[ Mat anuska- Susitna area] hunt or would |like to hunt the Nel china
caribou herd in Unit 13, and there were about 18 proposals by
citizens who were upset with the process of choosing who could
hunt there and who couldn’t. M. Judkins said he thought the
[ process] needed to be revised, but added that he didn't have
the answers right now, other than to just throw it out and go to
a drawing - but nobody likes that either. He suggested it was a
problem that needs to be dealt with and said the other mgjor
problem is dealing with predators. M. Judki ns explained that
managi ng habitat, predators, and hunters can be done to
i nfluence wildlife populations, and suggested that not rnuch had
been done about predators. He said there had been three or four
pr edat or - managenent plans that had gone through [BOE in the
past three or four years, but none of them had been i npl enented.
M. Judki ns suggested that those plans need to be reviewed and

i npl enented where they are still feasible.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if "we" had gone to Tier Il on the
Nel china river.

MR. JUDKINS said the Nelchina caribou herd went to Tier Il a
nunber of years ago, and the npbose herd is "teetering” on the
bal ance right now. All that is needed is 600 bulls there for

subsi stence purposes, he said, and "we're" just right about half
of that. He suggested it may [reach that nunber] in the next
year.

Number 0713

ROD ARNO, testified. Noting that he thought the governor had
made sone excellent choices, he said he knows five of the
[ appoi ntees] personally and knows they have sincere interests in
subsi stence hunters, whether local or wurban; in nonconsunptive
viewers of wldlife; and in sports hunters. M. Arno
acknowl edged that he didn't personally know Sharon MLeod-
Everette but said she is, as a big-ganme guide, "representing an
industry that has over 100 years of history in Al aska of
successfully operating, and, obviously, under sustained yield."
He suggested the [big-ganme industry] pays for 80 percent of
wildlife conservation' s budget. He offered his belief that the
criticism [that there is] an unbalanced board is unjust, and
said as long as there are individuals who don't believe that
viewing and hunting of the sane populations are conpatible,
there's no mddle ground, and conflict wth those people wll
conti nue.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 30- February 5, 2003



Number 0584

CO- CHAIR CHENAULT asked if there was additional public
testi nmony; none was offered.

CO CHAI R CHENAULT offered his belief that the governor had done
a good job [in nom nating] the appointees, and said he thought
M. Sonerville said it best when he said one should hire people
smarter than oneself. He said he believed it was the
commttee's duty to pass [the appointees] on for confirmation.

Nunber 0520

CO CHAIR FATE remarked, "As the years have gone by, and |'ve
lived in this state a long tine, | don't believe that | have
ever seen a better slate going to the Board of Ganme than | have
today." He congratulated not only the appointees, but also the
governor for taking the tine to "sometinmes personally interview
these people and select such a wonderful slate, and | really

truthfully nean that."

[No formal notion was made, but the appointnments of Pete Buist,
Sharon McLeod-Everette, Ronald J. Sonerville, Ted H Spraker,
and difford P. Judkins were treated as advanced from comittee.
The confirmation of M chael Fleagle would be heard on February
12.]

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 2:30 p. m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -31- February 5, 2003



